
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements of Ritco Travels and Tours Private Limited, which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profi t and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the State-
ment of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, including a summary of the 
signifi cant accounƟ ng policies and other explanatory informaƟ on .
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, the aforesaid fi nancial 
statements give the informaƟ on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian AccounƟ ng Standards prescribed under secƟ on 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian AccounƟ ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounƟ ng principles gen-
erally accepted in India, of the state of aff airs( fi nancial posiƟ on) of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the profi t / Loss 
and total comprehensive income/Loss,(fi nancial performance), changes in equity and its cash fl ows for the year ended on 
that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the fi nancial statements in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟ ng specifi ed under secƟ on 
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibiliƟ es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s ResponsibiliƟ es 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements secƟ on of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence re-
quirements that are relevant to our audit of the fi nancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfi lled our other ethical responsibiliƟ es in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the fi nancial statements.

Material uncertainty relaƟ ng to going concern
We draw aƩ enƟ on to note No. 30(16) – Other explanatory informaƟ on relaƟ ng to impact of global health pandemic 
Covid19 on the company and its business poinƟ ng out the disrupƟ ons eff ecƟ ng turnover, profi tability and cash fl ows im-
pacƟ ng going concern and the eff orts of company to handle the situaƟ on with expectaƟ on of realizaƟ on of carrying value 
of receivables and intangible assets and no eff ect on going conern status of company and its business with events being 
uncertain at present.
Our opinion is not modifi ed in respect of this maƩ er.

InformaƟ on Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparaƟ on of the other informaƟ on. The other informaƟ on 
comprises the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the fi nancial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the fi nancial statements does not cover the other informaƟ on and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connecƟ on with our audit of the fi nancial statements, our responsi-
bility is to read the other informaƟ on and, in doing so, consider whether the other informaƟ on is materially inconsistent 
with the fi nancial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be mate-
rially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informaƟ on, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maƩ ers stated in secƟ on 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparaƟ on of these fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view of the fi nancial posiƟ on, fi nancial perfor-
mance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash fl ows of the Company in accordance with the Ind 
AS and other accounƟ ng principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of ad-
equate accounƟ ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for prevenƟ ng and detecƟ ng frauds and other irregulariƟ es;

selecƟ on and applicaƟ on of appropriate accounƟ ng policies; making judgments and esƟ mates that are reasonable 
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and prudent; and design, implementaƟ on and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial controls, that were oper-
aƟ ng eff ecƟ vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟ ng records, relevant to the preparaƟ on 
and presentaƟ on of the fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the fi nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to conƟ nue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maƩ ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of ac-
counƟ ng unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operaƟ ons, or has no realisƟ c 
alternaƟ ve but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s fi nancial reporƟ ng process.

Auditor’s ResponsibiliƟ es for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objecƟ ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infl uence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these fi nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepƟ cism 
throughout the audit. We also:

IdenƟ fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suffi  cient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecƟ ng a material misstatement resulƟ ng from 
fraud is higher than for one resulƟ ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenƟ onal omissions, 
misrepresentaƟ ons, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal fi nancial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under secƟ on 143(3)(i) of the Act,

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal fi nancial con-
trols system in place and the operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟ ng policies used and the reasonableness of accounƟ ng esƟ mates and 
related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounƟ ng and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condiƟ ons that may cast 
signifi cant doubt on the Company’s ability to conƟ nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncer-
tainty exists, we are required to draw aƩ enƟ on in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the fi nancial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or condiƟ ons may cause the 
Company to cease to conƟ nue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentaƟ on, structure and content of the fi nancial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the fi nancial statements represent the underlying transacƟ ons and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentaƟ on. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the fi nancial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the fi nancial 
statements may be infl uenced. We consider quanƟ taƟ ve materiality and qualitaƟ ve factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluaƟ ng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the eff ect of any idenƟ fi ed 
misstatements in the fi nancial statements. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other maƩ ers, the planned scope and Ɵ ming of the audit and signifi cant audit fi ndings, including any 
signifi cant defi ciencies in internal control that we idenƟ fy during our audit. We also provide those charged with 
governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relaƟ onships and other maƩ ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
1. As required by SecƟ on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examinaƟ on of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profi t and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid fi nancial statements comply with the Ind AS specifi ed under SecƟ on 133 of 
the Act, read with Companies (Indian AccounƟ ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from to Ɵ me

e) As required by SecƟ on 143(3) of the Act, we report that in our opinion the going concern maƩ er described 
in material uncertainty related to going concern paragraph above , may have an adverse eff ect on the 
funcƟ oning of the Company

f) On the basis of the wriƩ en representaƟ ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualifi ed as on March 31, 2021 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of SecƟ on 164 (2) of the Act.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporƟ ng of the Company 
and the operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

h) With respect to the other maƩ ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the require-
ments of secƟ on 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, as the com-
pany is a private limited company , provisions of secƟ on 197 of the Act are not applicable to the company.
i) With respect to the other maƩ ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our informa-
Ɵ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟ gaƟ ons on its fi nancial posiƟ on in its fi nancial state-
ments. Refer note no. 30 to the fi nancial statements.

ii. The Company did not have material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivaƟ ve 
contracts.

iii. The Company had no amounts to be transferred to Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund and conse-
quently there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Edu-
caƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in 
terms of SecƟ on 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the maƩ ers specifi ed in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order.

 For ANAND JAIN & CO.
 Chartered Accountants
 Firm’s RegistraƟ on No. 01857C

 (ANAND PRAKASH JAIN)
 Proprietor M.no.071045
 UDIN 21071045AAAAAO1990
 Place : Jaipur 
 Date:23/04/2021
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ secƟ on of our report to the 
Members of Ritco Travels and Tours Private Limited of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟ ng under Clause (i) of Sub- secƟ on 3 of SecƟ on 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporƟ ng of Ritco Travels and Tours Private Limited (“the Com-
pany”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjuncƟ on with our audit of the fi nancial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal fi nancial controls 
based on the internal control over fi nancial reporƟ ng criteria established by the Company considering the essenƟ al 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
ReporƟ ng issued by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibiliƟ es include the design, imple-
mentaƟ on and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial controls that were operaƟ ng eff ecƟ vely for ensuring the 
orderly and effi  cient conduct of its business, including adherence to respecƟ ve company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevenƟ on and detecƟ on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟ ng 
records, and the Ɵ mely preparaƟ on of reliable fi nancial informaƟ on, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporƟ ng of the Company 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial ReporƟ ng (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India 
and the Standards on AudiƟ ng prescribed under SecƟ on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent appli-
cable to an audit of internal fi nancial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporƟ ng was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
eff ecƟ vely in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the ade-
quacy of the internal fi nancial controls system over fi nancial reporƟ ng and their operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness. Our audit of 
internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporƟ ng included obtaining an understanding of internal fi nancial controls 
over fi nancial reporƟ ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tesƟ ng and evaluaƟ ng the design and 
operaƟ ng eff ecƟ veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the audi-
tor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal fi nancial controls system over fi nancial reporƟ ng of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟ ng
A company’s internal fi nancial control over fi nancial reporƟ ng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of fi nancial reporƟ ng and the preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounƟ ng principles. A company’s internal fi nancial control over fi nancial re-
porƟ ng includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refl ect the transacƟ ons and 
disposiƟ ons of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transacƟ ons are recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟ on of fi nancial state-
ments in accordance with generally accepted accounƟ ng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the compa-
ny are being made only in accordance with authorisaƟ ons of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenƟ on or Ɵ mely detecƟ on of unauthorised acquisiƟ on, use, or dis-
posiƟ on of the company’s assets that could have a material eff ect on the fi nancial statements.

LimitaƟ ons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟ ng
Because of the inherent limitaƟ ons of internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporƟ ng, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projecƟ ons of any evaluaƟ on of the internal fi nancial controls over fi nancial reporƟ ng 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal fi nancial control over fi nancial reporƟ ng may become in-
adequate because of changes in condiƟ ons, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.
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Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal fi nancial controls system over fi nancial reporƟ ng and such internal fi nancial 
controls over fi nancial reporƟ ng were operaƟ ng eff ecƟ vely as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over 
fi nancial reporƟ ng criteria established by the Company considering the essenƟ al components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟ ng issued by the InsƟ tute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. However Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟ ng needs further im-
provement.

For ANAND JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s RegistraƟ on No. 01857C

(ANAND PRAKASH JAIN)
Proprietor M.no.071045
Place : Jaipur 
Date:23/04/2021

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
 (Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ secƟ on of 

our report to the Members of Ritco Travels and Tours Private Limited of even date)

i. IN RESPECT OF THE COMPANY’S FIXED ASSETS

(a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟ culars, including quanƟ taƟ ve details and situa-
Ɵ on of fi xed assets. However such records showing full parƟ culars including quanƟ taƟ ve details and situaƟ on 
of certain fi xed assets are being updated.

(b)  The Company has a program of verifi caƟ on to cover all the items of fi xed assets in a phased manner over a pe-
riod of three years. Pursuant to the program, certain fi xed assets were physically verifi ed by the management 
during the year. According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noƟ ced on such verifi caƟ on.

(c )  In our opinion , this periodicity of physical verifi caƟ on, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets

(d)  According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the records examined by us and based on the ex-
aminaƟ on of the conveyance deeds / registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the Ɵ tle deeds, of 
immovable properƟ es are held in the name of the Company.

II. The company is a service company , primarily rendering tour and travel services. Accordingly it   does not have any 
physical inventories.   Accordingly, reporƟ ng under clause 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to the company and 
hence not commented upon.

iii. According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has not granted any loans , secured or unse-
cured to any company , fi rm, limited liability partnerships or other parƟ es covered in the register maintained under 
secƟ on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Thus paragraphs 3(iii) (a) to ( c ) of the order are not applicable and hence 
not commented upon.

iv. In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of SecƟ ons 185 and 186 of the Act with respect to grant of loans, making investments , giving guarantees 
and providing securiƟ es, to the extent applicable.

v. The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimeddeposits as at March 31, 
2021 . As per the informaƟ on & explanaƟ ons given to us no order has been passed by Company Law Board, or Na-
Ɵ onal Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other tribunal in this respect and hence 
quesƟ on of its compliance does not arise.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specifi ed by the Central Government under secƟ on 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for the business acƟ viƟ es carried out by the Company. Thus reporƟ ng under clause 3(vi) of the 
order is not applicable to the Company.
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vii. (a)  According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, and on the basis of our examinaƟ on       
of  the records of the Company, Company has generally been regular in deposiƟ ng with apprpri ate authoriƟ es 
amount deducted/ accrued in the books of accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statu-
tory dues applicable to it.

(b)  According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, there were no material arrears of undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service 
Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

(c)  According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, there were no material dues of income tax, Sales 
tax/value added tax/ service tax/ goods and service tax, or Customs Duty which have not been deposited with 
the appropriate authoriƟ es as at March 31, 2021 on account of dispute

viii. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings from fi nancial insƟ tuƟ ons, bank , government 
or dues to  debentureholders during the year.

ix. The Company did not raise any money by way of iniƟ al public off er or further public off er (including debt instru-
ments) during the year . In our opinion term loans were applied for the purpose for which loans were obtained by 
the Company.

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, no material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its offi  cers or employees has been noƟ ced or reported during the year. However

i)  during the year instance of unauthorised use by unkown person of portal of Airline by using the ID of Company 
for making Ɵ ckets cosƟ ng Rs,80083/- was observed. Company has inƟ mated CERT-IN regarding this incidence 
and fi led complaint with Cyber cell. Pending acƟ on at cyber cell, provision of loss if any which may arise, has 
not been provided for.

ii)  a peƟ Ɵ on had been fi led by one of the vendors against the company under Insolvency and bankruptcy code 
before NCLT for recovery of a sum of RS 121.52 lacs in earlier years . Company has not made any provision for 
this liability as in the opinion of the company based on legal view provided by legal experts, the maƩ er is not 
maintainable.

xi.  As the company is a private limited company , hence provisions of SecƟ on 197 of the Act are not applicable in 
respect of the payment of managerial remuneraƟ on made by the company.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporƟ ng under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company is in compliance with 
SecƟ on 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transacƟ ons with the related parƟ es 
and the details of related party transacƟ ons have been disclosed in the fi nancial statements as required by the 
applicable accounƟ ng standards.

xiv.  As per the informaƟ on provided to us , during the year Company has not made any preferenƟ al allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly paid converƟ ble debentures and hence reporƟ ng under clause 3 
(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv.  In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, during the year the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transacƟ ons with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence 
provisions of secƟ on 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under secƟ on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For ANAND JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s RegistraƟ on No. 01857C

(ANAND PRAKASH JAIN)
Proprietor M.no.071045
Place : Jaipur 
Date:23/04/2021
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RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED 
(A wholly owned subsidiary of Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited)

 Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021  
    (Amount in lacs) 

Note 
No. 

As at 
31st March, 2021 

As at
31st March, 2020ParƟ culars

 ASSETS 
 1)  Non-current assets 

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment    2   320.79   339.14 
 (b) Other Intangible assets    3   36.46   46.64 
 (c) Rental Lease Assets   -     20.16 
 (d) Financial Assets  

   (i) Loans    4   5.19   5.19 
   (ii) Others    5   -     -   

 (e) Deferred tax assets  6&17   71.88   17.81 
 (f) Other non current assets    7   0.01   0.36 

  434.33   429.31 
   2)  Current assets  

 (a) Financial Assets  
   (i) Trade Receivable   8   696.40   973.98 
   (ii) Cash and cash equivalents    9   11.65   93.05 
   (iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above    10   26.55   25.15 
   (iv) Loans    11   339.35   475.83 
 (b) Current Tax Assets (Net)    12   59.21   85.96 
 (c) Other current assets   13   39.65   41.86 

  1,172.82   1,695.83 
 Total Assets   1,607.15   2,125.13 

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 Equity 
 (a) Equity Share capital    14   288.89   288.89 
 (b) Other Equity    15   63.51   218.16 

  352.40   507.05 
 LIABILITIES  

  1  Non-current liabiliƟ es  
 (a) Financial LiabiliƟ es  
      (i) Borrowings    16   584.16   1.56 
      (ii) Lease liabiliƟ es   -     7.65 
 (b) Deferred tax liabiliƟ es (Net)    17   -     -   
 (c) Other non-current liabiliƟ es    18   -     -   

  584.16   9.21 
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  2  Current liabiliƟ es  
 (a) Financial LiabiliƟ es  
     (i) Borrowings    19   404.55   1,263.99 
      (ii) Lease liabiliƟ es   -   
           Current maturity of lease liabiliƟ es   -     15.81 
   (iii) Trade payables    20 
(a)  total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enter-
prises                                                           

 i   -   

 b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enter-
prises & small enterprises                     

ii   25.64   98.21 

  (iv) Other fi nancial liabiliƟ es (other than those specifi ed in 
item (c)  

  21   57.86   38.71 

 (b) Other current liabiliƟ es   22   182.54   192.15 
 (c) Provisions    -   

  670.59   1,608.87 
 Total Equity and LiabiliƟ es   1,607.15   2,125.13 

Signifi cant AccounƟ ng Policies   1     
The accompanying notes are an integral part of fi nancial statements     1-30      
 
Other Explanatory InformaƟ on  30  
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the fi nancial statements     
  
As per our report of even date aƩ ached
For ANAND JAIN & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
FRN 001857C Ritco Travels and Tours Private Limited  
Chartered Accountants      
 
(Anand Prakash Jain) (Hem Kumar Bhargava) (Manisha Agarwal)  (Dilip Kumar Morwal)  
Proprietor Director (Non ExecuƟ ve Chairperson)  (Group Company Secretary) 
M. No. 071045 DIN:-03230480 DIN:-00453971  ACS 17572 
Place: Jaipur      
Date: 23.04.2021 
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RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED
(A wholly owned subsidiary of Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited)

Statement of profi t and loss for year ended 31st, March, 2021
    (Amount in lacs) 

PARTICULARS
Note No. Year ended  

31.03.2021
Year ended
31.03.2020

I Revenue from operaƟ ons 23 162.42 658.31 
II Other income 24 12.51 12.05
III Total Income (I + II) 174.93  670.37 
IV Expenses:

Purchase of Stock in Trade
Employee benefi ts expense 25 143.60 357.10
Finance costs 26 111.07 137.49 
DepreciaƟ on and AmorƟ saƟ on 27 38.00 43.50
Vehicle OperaƟ ng Expenses 28 13.75 60.40
Other expenses 29 82.66 183.13
Provision for Trade Receivable Impairment   -   104.12

Total expenses (IV) 389.07 885.73 
V Profi t before excepƟ onal items & tax(III-IV) (214.14) (215.37)
VI ExcepƟ onal Items   -   -
VII Profi t/(loss) before tax (V-VI) (214.14) (215.37)
VIII Tax expense:

Current tax -   -
MAT Credit set off / /Carried Forward  -   -
Deferred tax liability(+)/assets(-)  (56.74) (30.09)
Income tax for earlier year 4.86 1.10
Total Tax Expenses (51.88) (28.99)

IX Profi t/(loss) for the period from conƟ nuing operaƟ ons (VII-VIII) (162.26) (186.38)
X Profi t/(Loss) from disconƟ nued operaƟ ons -   -
XI Tax expense of disconƟ nued operaƟ ons -   -
XII Profi t/(Loss) from disconƟ nued operaƟ ons (aŌ er tax) (X-XI) -   -
XIII Profi t/(loss) for the period (IX+XII) (162.26) (186.38)
XIV Other Comprehensive Income

A(i) Items that will not be reclassifi ed to profi t or loss   -   -
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defi ned benefi t plans transferred to oci 10.27 (3.76)
(ii) Income tax on above  (2.67) 0.98
Total  7.60 (2.78)

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) (Comprising Prof-
it(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income  for the period)

(154.66) (189.16)

XVI Earnings per equity share (for conƟ nuing operaƟ on):
(1) Basic (5.62)  (7.12)
(2) Diluted (5.62) (7.12)
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Signifi cant AccounƟ ng Policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of fi nancial statements    1-30       
  
Other Explanatory InformaƟ on        
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the fi nancial statements      
  
As per our report of even date aƩ ached        
For ANAND JAIN & CO.   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
FRN 001857C    Ritco Travels and Tours Private Limited 
Chartered Accountants  

(Anand Prakash Jain) (Hem Kumar Bhargava) (Manisha Agarwal)  (Dilip Kumar Morwal)  
Proprietor Director (Non ExecuƟ ve Chairperson)  (Group Company Secretary)  
M. No. 071045 DIN:-03230480 DIN:-00453971 ACS 17572  

Place: Jaipur
Date: 23.04.2021 
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RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED
(A WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF TRANSCORP INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)

Cash fl ow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021
(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars As at 31st 
March,2021

As at 31st 
March,2020

Cash Flow from operaƟ ng acƟ viƟ es

Profi t(+) / Loss(-) before tax -214.14 -215.37

Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profi t before tax to net cash fl ows:

              DepreciaƟ on 38.00 43.50

             ( Profi t )/ Loss on sale of fi xed assets -  -   

              Bad debts wriƩ en off / provison for impairment 21.52 106.50

             Profi t on terminaƟ on of lease -3.51 -0.61

              Unspent LiabiliƟ es wriƩ en back/write backs -1.47 -22.47

Interest Expense 111.07 134.23

Rental Income -4.20 -6.00

Other borrowing costs - 3.26

Interest Income -8.31 -6.05

OperaƟ ng profi t before working capital changes -61.04 37.00

Movements in working capital:

Increase(+) / Decrease(-) in trade payables -72.57 -438.57

Increase(+) / Decrease(-) in other current fi nancial liabiliƟ es 19.15 -9.22

Increase(+) / Decrease(-) in other current liabiliƟ es -8.14 23.16

Increase(+) / Decrease(-) in other non-current  liabiliƟ es - -9.96

Decrease(+) / Increase(-) in non-current fi nancial assets-loans - 7.12

Decrease(+) / Increase(-) in other non-current fi nancial assets - 0.68

Decrease(+) / Increase(-) in other non current assets 0.35 7.97

Decrease(+) / Increase(-) in trade receivables 256.06 614.50

Decrease(+) / Increase(-) in current fi nancial assets- loans 136.47 -72.73

Decrease(+) / Increase(-) in other current assets 2.21 12.12

 Defi ned benefi t plan under OCI impact 10.27 -3.76

282.76 168.30

Direct taxes paid including GST on advance/refund received 21.89 4.29

Net cash fl ow from (+) / used in (-) operaƟ ng acƟ viƟ es (A) 304.65 172.59

Cash Flow from invesƟ ng acƟ viƟ es

Purchase of tangible ,intangible and right to use fi xed assets -0.47 -45.89

TerminaƟ on of lease 14.68 3.51

Investment in bank deposits having original maturity of more than three months -1.40 -25.15

Rental Income 4.20 6.00

Interest Income 8.31 6.05

Net cash fl ow from (+) / used in (-) invesƟ ng acƟ viƟ es (B) 25.32 -55.48

Cash Flow from fi nancing acƟ viƟ es
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Proceeds from issue of share capital - 88.89

SecuriƟ es Premium - 111.11

Lease borrowings -23.46 23.46

Interest paid -111.07 -134.23

Other Borrowing costs -  -3.26

Proceeds(+)/Repayment(-) from/of current fi nancial liabiliƟ es-borowings (net) -859.44 -80.43

Proceeds(+)/Repayment(-) from/of non-current fi nancial liabiliƟ es- borowings (net) 582.60 -72.28

Net cash fl ow from (+) / used in (-) fi nancing acƟ viƟ es (C) -411.37 -66.74

Net increase(+) /decrease (-) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) -81.40 50.37

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 93.05 42.68

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11.65 93.05

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand 0.71 3.22

Balances with banks on current accounts 10.94 87.12

Cheques, draŌ s on hand  -   2.71

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note No.9) 11.65 93.05

Notes:  
1.  The above cash fl ow statement has been compiled from and is based on the balance sheet as at 31.03.2021 

and the related statement of profi t and loss for the year ended on that date.  
2.  The above cash fl ow statement has been prepared as per the indirect method as set out in Ind As Stan-

dard-7 on Cash fl ow statement as noƟ fi ed under secƟ on 133 of the Companies Act,2013.  
3.  Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash fl ow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and 

short-terminvestments with an original maturity of three months or less. The accompaying notes 1 to 30 are 
an integral part of the fi nancial statements

As per our annexed report of even date
For ANAND JAIN & CO  For & on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants   of Ritco Travels and Tours Private Limited 
FRN:001857C 

ANAND PRAKASH JAIN  Manisha Agarwal   Hem Kumar Bhargava Dilip Kumar Morwal 
PROPRIETOR   Non-ExecuƟ ve Chairperson Director  Group Company Secretary
M.NO.-071045    DIN: 00453971   DIN: 03230480  ACS:17572 

Place: JAIPUR     
Date:23/04/2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

229



RI
TC

O
 T

RA
VE

LS
 A

N
D

 T
O

U
RS

 P
RI

VA
TE

 L
IM

IT
ED

(A
 w

ho
lly

 o
w

ne
d 

su
bs

id
ia

ry
 o

f T
ra

ns
co

rp
 In

te
rn

aƟ
 o

na
l L

im
ite

d)
St

at
em

en
t o

f C
ha

ng
es

 in
 E

qu
ity

 a
s 

at
 3

1s
t M

ar
ch

, 2
02

1
A

. E
qu

ity
 S

ha
re

 C
ap

ita
l  

 

(A
m

ou
nt

 in
 la

cs
)

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 0
1.

04
.2

02
0

Ch
an

ge
s 

in
 e

qu
ity

 s
ha

re
 

ca
pi

ta
l d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
Ba

la
nc

e 
as

 a
t 

31
.0

3.
20

21
Ba

la
nc

e 
as

 a
t 

01
.0

4.
20

19
Ch

an
ge

s 
in

 e
qu

ity
 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 
31

.0
3.

20
21

  2
88

.8
9 

  -
 

  2
88

.8
9 

  2
00

.0
0 

  8
8.

89
 

  2
88

.8
9 

 B
. O

th
er

 E
qu

ity
 

 P
ar

Ɵ c
ul

ar
s 

Sh
ar

e 
ap

pl
ic

aƟ
 o

n 
m

on
ey

 
pe

nd
in

g 
al

lo
tm

en
t 

Eq
ui

ty
 c

om
-

po
ne

nt
 o

f 
co

m
po

un
d 

fi -
na

nc
ia

l i
ns

tr
u-

m
en

ts
 

Re
se

rv
e 

an
d 

su
rp

lu
s 

 R
ev

al
ua

-
Ɵ o

n 
Su

r-
pl

us

Re
-m

ea
su

re
-

m
en

t o
f t

he
 n

et
 

de
fi n

ed
 b

en
efi

 t
 

Pl
an

s
To

ta
l

Ca
pi

ta
l 

Re
se

rv
e 

Se
cu

ri
Ɵ e

s 
Pr

em
iu

m
  

G
en

er
al

 
Re

se
rv

e 
Re

ta
in

ed
 

Ea
rn

in
gs

 

 B
al

an
ce

 a
s a

t  
01

.0
4.

20
19

 
  1

99
.0

0 
  -

   
  9

8.
87

 
  1

.9
8 

29
9.

85
 

 T
ot

al
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 In
-

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r 
  -

18
6.

38
 

  -
2.

78
 

-1
89

.1
6 

 Is
su

e 
of

 sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l 
  1

11
.1

1 
  -

   
11

1.
11

 
 IN

D
 A

S 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t o
n 

re
-

co
ng

ni
Ɵ o

n 
of

 R
ig

ht
 to

 u
se

 
As

se
t i

n 
re

sp
ec

t o
f L

ea
se

s 
as

 
pe

r I
N

D 
AS

 1
16

 

  -
3.

64
 

-3
.6

4 

 B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 0

1.
04

.2
02

0 
  -

   
  -

   
  -

   
  3

10
.1

1 
  -

   
  -

91
.1

4 
  -

   
  -

0.
81

 
21

8.
16

 

 T
ot

al
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 In
-

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 Y
ea

r 
  -

16
2.

26
 

  7
.6

0 
-1

54
.6

6 

 B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1.
03

.2
02

1 
  -

   
  -

   
  -

   
  3

10
.1

1 
  -

   
  -

25
3.

40
 

  -
   

  6
.8

0 
63

.5
1

230



RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED
A WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDRY OF TRANSCORP INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021 and Statement of Profi t and Loss for the year ended on that date.

NOTE NO. 1 - CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. ReporƟ ng EnƟ ty
RITCO Travels And Tours Private Limited (“the company”) is a private limited company domiciled in India (CIN: 
U63040RJ2010PTC032902),having its registered offi  ce at “Transcorp Towers”, 5th fl oor, MoƟ Doongri road, Jai-
pur-302004. Company is mainly engaged in the business of Travels and Tours related acƟ viƟ es. It is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited.

B. Basis of PreparaƟ on
1.  Statement of Compliance

Ministry of Corporate Aff airs noƟ fi ed roadmap to implement Indian AccounƟ ng Standards (Ind AS) noƟ -
fi ed under the Companies (Indian AccounƟ ng Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. As per the said road-
map, Parent company, M/sTranscorp InternaƟ onal limited and its subsidiaries are required to apply Ind 
AS starƟ ng from fi nancial year beginning on or aŌ er 1st April, 2017. As RITCOTravels And Tours Private 
Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of Parent company, M/s Transcorp InternaƟ onal limited, hence it is 
also required to apply Ind AS from Financial Year beginning on or aŌ er 1st April, 2017.

Accordingly, these fi nancial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the Ind 
AS.

These standalone fi nancial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounƟ ng on going concern as-
sumpƟ on and comply with Indian AccounƟ ng Standards (Ind AS) noƟ fi ed under the Companies (Indian 
AccounƟ ng Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 2013 (to 
the extent noƟ fi ed and applicable) and applicable provisions of Companies Act, 1956. 

These financial statements were authorized for issue by Board of Directors on 23rd April, 2021

2.  Basis of measurement

The fi nancial statements have been prepared on historical cost convenƟ on except for revalued costs and 
following material items which have been measured at fair value as required by IND AS- 

Defi ned benefi t plans- Plan assets measured at fair value

3.  FuncƟ onal and PresentaƟ on Currency

These fi nancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s funcƟ onal cur-
rency. All amounts have been rounded off  to the nearest lakhs.

4.  Current and Non Current Classifi caƟ on

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current 
classification.

An asset is classifi ed as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operaƟ ng cycle,

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

Expected to be realized within twelve months aŌ er the reporƟ ng period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seƩ le a liability for at least 
twelve months aŌ er the reporƟ ng period.
All other assets are classifi ed as non-current.

A liability is classifi ed as current when it is:

Expected to be seƩ led in normal operaƟ ng cycle,

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
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Due to be seƩ led within twelve months aŌ er the reporƟ ng period, or

There is no uncondiƟ onal right to defer the seƩ lement of the liability for at least twelve months aŌ er 
the reporƟ ng period.
All other liabiliƟ es are classifi ed as non-current.

The OperaƟ ng cycle is the Ɵ me between the acquisiƟ on of assets for processing and their realizaƟ on in 
cash and cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabiliƟ es are classifi ed as Non-Current assets and lia-
biliƟ es.

C.  Signifi cant AccounƟ ng Policies
A summary of the accounƟ ng policies applied in the preparaƟ on of the fi nancial statements are as given below. 
These accounƟ ng policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the fi nancial statements.
On transiƟ on to IND AS, the company has elected to uƟ lize the opƟ on under Ind AS 101 by not applying the pro-
visions of Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 38 retrospecƟ vely and conƟ nue to use the previous GAAP carrying amount as a 
deemed cost under Ind AS at the date of transiƟ on to Ind AS. Therefore, the carrying amount of Property, Plant 
and Equipment and Intangible Assets as per the previous GAAP as at 1 April 2016, i.e.; the Company’s date of 
transiƟ on to Ind AS, were maintained on transiƟ on to Ind AS.

1. Property, Plant and Equipment

1.1. IniƟ alrecogniƟ on and measurement

An item of PPE is recognised as an asset if and only if it is probable that future economic benefi ts associ-
ated with them will fl ow to the company and the cost of item can be measured reliably.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciaƟ on and any 
accumulated impairment losses.Cost includes any cost directly aƩ ributable to bringing the asset 
to the locaƟ on and operaƟ ng condiƟ on like installaƟ on and assembly cost. Any trade discounts 
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. All cost related to acquisiƟ on and installaƟ on are 
capitalized. 
Items of Property, Plant and Equipment having diff erent useful lives are recognized separately.

1.2. Subsequent cost
Subsequent expenditure is added to the book value only if it increases the future economic bene-
fi ts from the exisƟ ng asset.

1.3. DepreciaƟ on
Assets are depreciated using straight line method over the esƟ mated useful life of the asset as 
specifi ed in Part “C” of Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 aŌ er retaining residual value at a max-
imum  of 5% of original cost. Asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each fi nancial 
year end considering the physical condiƟ on of the assets.

1.4. De-recogniƟ on
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized when no future economic benefi ts are 
expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains or losses on disposal/ transfer/ de-recog-
niƟ on of item of Property, Plant and Equipment are determined as diff erence between net sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment and is recognized in the state-
ment of profi t and loss.

2.  Intangible Assets

2.1  IniƟ al RecogniƟ on and measurement

IdenƟ fi able intangible assets are recognized
- When company controls the asset
- It is probable that future economic benefi ts will fl ow to the company
- The cost of the asset can be reliably measured
Intangible assets comprise Website development, soŌ ware cost and integraƟ on costwhich are de-
veloped and set up for business operaƟ ons of the company. Intangible assets that are acquired by 
the Company, which have fi nite useful lives, are measured at cost less accumulated amorƟ zaƟ on 
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and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any directly aƩ ributable incidental expenses 
necessary to make assets ready for its intended use.

2.2  Subsequent Cost

Subsequent expenditure is recognised as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is 
probable that future economic benefi ts deriving from the cost incurred will fl ow to the enterprise 
and the cost of the item can be measurably reliably.

2.3  AmorƟ zaƟ on

Intangible assets are amorƟ zed on straight line method basis as per the methodology provided 
and useful life of the asset menƟ oned in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.AmorƟ zaƟ on of 
intangible assets is included in the head DepreciaƟ on and amorƟ zaƟ on expenses in the statement 
of profi t and loss.

2.4  De-recogniƟ on

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefi ts are expected from their use 
or upon their disposal. Gains or losses on disposal/ transfer/ de-recogniƟ on of intangible assets are 
determined as diff erence between net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of intangible asset 
and is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss.

3.   Right to use Asset

     IniƟ al recogniƟ on
Consequent upon apllicability of “IND AS 116- Leases”, following the modifi ed retrospecƟ ve meth-
od of transiƟ on ,  right to use asset was recognised in respect of all lease contracts for a period 
more than one year exisƟ ng on 1.4.2019 at an amount equal to present value , based on incre-
mental rate of borrowing , of lease liability net of cumulaƟ ve adjustments. In respect of new lease 
contracts for a period exceeding one year entered during the accounƟ ng period of fi nancial state-
ments,  right to use was accounted for at an amount equal to present value , based on incremental 
rate of borrowing , of lease liability. Right to use assets are amorƟ zed on straight line method basis 
over the  useful life of the asset. In case of premature terminaƟ on of contract as per right available 
in the lease agreements it is derecognized and diff erence between lease liability and the value of 
right to use exisƟ ng at the Ɵ me of terminaƟ on is transferred to statement of profi t and loss under 
the head other operaƟ ng income . There was no case of modifi caƟ on of the lease contracts. Mod-
ifi caƟ on if any will be accounted for as provided in INDAS 116.

4.  Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs specifi cally relaƟ ng to the acquisiƟ on of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substan-
Ɵ al period of Ɵ me to get ready for its intended use are capitalized (net of income on temporarily deploy-
ment of funds) as part of the cost of such assets. Borrowing cost consists of interest and other cost that 
the company incurs in connecƟ on with the borrowing funds.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss as expense in the period in 
which they are incurred.

5.   TaxaƟ on

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax (including MAT). Current tax ex-
pense is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss except to the extent that it relates to items rec-
ognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCI or equity.

Current tax provision is made in accordance with the relevant tax regulaƟ ons applicable to the company.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or sub-
stanƟ vely enacted and as applicable at the reporƟ ng date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect 
of previous years. Current income taxes are recognized under ‘Income tax payable’ net of payments on 
account, or under ‘Tax receivables’ where there is a debit balance.

Deferred tax is recognised on diff erences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliƟ es in the 
fi nancial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computaƟ on of taxable profi t and are 
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.Deferred tax liabiliƟ es are generally recognised 
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for all taxable temporary diff erences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deducƟ ble 
temporary diff erences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profi ts will be available against which those deducƟ ble temporary diff erences, carry forward tax 
losses and allowances can be uƟ lised.

Deferred tax is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCI or equity.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporƟ ng date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that the related tax benefi t will be realized.

MAT (Minimum Alternate Tax) is applicable to the company. MAT paid in the year is charged to the State-
ment of Profi t and Loss as current tax. MAT credit available is recognized as an asset only to the extent, 
there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specifi ed period i.e. 
the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The company reviews the MAT credit 
enƟ tlement at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying value of MAT credit enƟ tlement 
to the extent that there is no longer convincing evidence to the eff ect that company will pay normal tax 
during the specifi ed period.   

6.   Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks being balances with banks in current accounts, cash in 
hand and cheques/draŌ s in hand.

7.  Cash Flow Statement

Cash fl ow statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in IND AS 7 “State-
ment of Cash Flows”.

8.   Foreign Currency TransacƟ ons and TranslaƟ ons

TransacƟ ons in foreign currencies are iniƟ ally recorded at the funcƟ onal currency spot rates at the date 
the transacƟ on fi rst qualifi es for recogniƟ on.
Monetary assets and liabiliƟ es denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the funcƟ onal curren-
cy spot rates of exchange at the reporƟ ng date. Exchange diff erences arising on seƩ lement or translaƟ on 
of monetary items are recognized in profi t or loss in the year in which it arises.

9.   Impairment of non-fi nancial assets

3. The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-fi nancial assets are reviewed at each reporƟ ng date to 
determine whether there is any indicaƟ on of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impair-
ment of Assets’. If any such indicaƟ on exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount (higher of its fair value 
less costs to disposal or its value in use) is esƟ mated. 
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its Cash GeneraƟ ng Unit (CGU) 
exceeds its esƟ mated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profi t or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporƟ ng date for any indicaƟ ons that 
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the 
esƟ mates used to determine the recoverable amount which is only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciaƟ on or 
amorƟ zaƟ on, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

10.  Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profi t or loss for the period aƩ ributable to the equity 
shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the events such as bonus 
issue, bonus element in a right issue, share split and reverse share split that have changed the number of 
equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. However, it shall not be adjusted 
for conversion of potenƟ al ordinary shares.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusƟ ng profi t or loss aƩ ributable to ordinary equity share-
holders and weighted average number of shares outstanding for the eff ects of all diluƟ ve potenƟ al shares. 
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11.  Provisions and ConƟ ngencies

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or construcƟ ve 
obligaƟ on that can be esƟ mated reliably, and it is probable that an ouƞ low of economic benefi ts will 
be required to seƩ le the obligaƟ on. If the eff ect of the Ɵ me value of money is material, provisions are 
determined by discounƟ ng the expected future cash fl ows at a pre-tax rate that refl ects current market 
assessments of the Ɵ me value of money and the risks specifi c to the liability. When discounƟ ng is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of Ɵ me is recognized as a fi nance cost. Provisions are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to refl ect the current best esƟ mate. The expense 
relaƟ ng to provision is presented in the statement of profi t and loss aŌ er neƫ  ng off  any amount expected 
to be recovered from a third party with virtual certainty and can be measured reliably.

ConƟ ngent liabiliƟ es are disclosed when there is a possible obligaƟ on arising from past events, the ex-
istence of which will be confi rmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligaƟ on that arises from past 
events where it is either not probable that ouƞ low of resources will be required to seƩ le or a reliable 
esƟ mate of the amount cannot be made. InformaƟ on on conƟ ngent liability is disclosed in the notes to 
the fi nancial statements. ConƟ ngent liabiliƟ es are disclosed on the basis of judgment of management/ in-
dependent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to refl ect the current 
management esƟ mate.

12.  Financial Instruments

(a)  Financial Assets
Company’s fi nancial assets include trade receivables, security deposits, advances, cash and cash 
equivalents and short term loans and advances.

IniƟ al RecogniƟ on and Measurement
All fi nancial assets are recognized iniƟ ally at fair value plus, in the case of fi nancial assets not re-
corded at fair value through profi t or loss, transacƟ on costs that are aƩ ributable to the acquisiƟ on 
or issue of the fi nancial asset.

Subsequent Measurement
The Financial Instrument is measured at the amorƟ zed cost if both the following condiƟ ons are 
met:

 The asset is held within a business model whose objecƟ ve is to hold assets for collecƟ ng 
contractual cash fl ows, and 

 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specifi ed dates to cash fl ows that are solely pay-
ments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 AŌ er iniƟ al measurement, such fi nancial assets are subsequently measured at amorƟ zed 
cost using the eff ecƟ ve interest rate (EIR) method.

Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measure-
ment and recogniƟ on of impairment loss on following fi nancial assets:

Trade Receivables
Impairment is made on the expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash short-
falls over the expected life of fi nancial assets. However, company’s trade receivables generally are 
of short term nature, hence no expected credit loss is provided. Actual credit loss during the period 
assessed by management is recognized in statement of profi t and loss as bad debts. For the pur-
pose of ECL no separate tracking of changes in credit risk of individual trade receivable and contract 
asset is done as these do not contain signifi cant fi nancing component . Accordingly  impairment is 
esƟ mated under the simplifi ed approach

Other fi nancial assets

For recogniƟ on of impairment loss on other fi nancial assets and risk exposure, the company deter-
mines whether there has been a signifi cant increase in the credit risk since iniƟ al recogniƟ on and if 
credit risk has increased signifi cantly, impairment loss is provided.
The esƟ mated impairment losses are recognized as a separate provision for impairment and the 
impairment losses are recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss .
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De-recogniƟ on of Financial Assets

A fi nancial asset (or where applicable, a part of a fi nancial asset or a part of a group of similar 
fi nancial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when:

 The rights to receive cash fl ows from the asset have expired, or

 The company has transferred its rights to receive cash fl ows from the asset or has assumed 
an obligaƟ on to pay the received cash fl ows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either 

(a) The company has transferred substanƟ ally all the risks and rewards of the asset

(b) The company has neither transferred nor retained substanƟ ally all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset..

(b). Financial Liability

The company’s fi nancial liabiliƟ es mainly includes, borrowings including deposits, trade payables 
and other payables. 

IniƟ al Measurement

All fi nancial liabiliƟ es other than fair valued through profi t and loss are recognised iniƟ ally at fair 
value less transacƟ on costs that are aƩ ributable to the issue of fi nancial liability. TransacƟ on costs 
of fi nancial liabiliƟ es are carried at fair value through profi t and loss is expensed in statement of 
Profi t and Loss.

Subsequent Measurement

These liabiliƟ es include deposits and interest bearing loans and borrowings. Subsequent to iniƟ al 
recogniƟ on, these liabiliƟ es are measured at amorƟ sed cost using eff ecƟ ve interest method. Amor-
Ɵ sed cost is calculated by taking in to account any discount or premium on acquisiƟ on and fees or 
costs that are integral part of EIR. The EIR amorƟ saƟ on is included as fi nance cost in the statement 
of profi t and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Since there are no or immaterial transacƟ on costs in borrowings,EIR has not been calculated.

De-recogniƟ on of fi nancial liabiliƟ es

A fi nancial liability is derecognised when the obligaƟ on under the liability is discharged or can-
celled or expires. When an exisƟ ng fi nancial liability is replaced by another, from the same lender 
on substanƟ ally diff erent terms, or the terms of an exisƟ ng liability are substanƟ ally modifi ed, 
such an exchange or modifi caƟ on is treated as the de-recogniƟ on of the original liability and the 
recogniƟ on of a new liability. The diff erence in the respecƟ ve carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profi t and loss. 

13. Fair Value measurement

In determining the fair value of its fi nancial instruments,the EnƟ ty uses a variety of methods and assump-
Ɵ ons thatare based on market condiƟ ons and risks exisƟ ng at eachreporƟ ng date. These methods used to 
determine fair valueincludes discounted cash fl ow analysis, available quoted market prices, dealer quotes 
and other appropriate methods. All methods of assessingfair value result in general approximaƟ on of 
value, and suchvalue may never actually be realized.

For fi nancial assets and liabiliƟ es maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date and which are 
not carried at fair value, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments.

14.  Revenue 

Company’s revenue is arising from sale of services like Ɵ ckeƟ ng, vehicle rentals, tours, hotels and Allied 
AcƟ viƟ es.

For services rendered to clients, the commission received from airlines, hotels etc., transport income and 
income on tours and other services (net of charges) are accounted for on rendering of service/accrual 
as per relevant contact terms using best esƟ mate. It is recognised upon transfer of control of services 
to customers in an amount that refl ects the consideraƟ on, company expects to receive in exchange for 
those services . Volume and other discounts as well as pricing incenƟ ves to customers are accounted for 
as reducƟ on of revenue.

Company collects  GST on behalf of the government and therefore, it is not an economic benefi t fl owing 
to the company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue. 
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Revenue from other income comprises interest on bank deposits, loans and advances, rental income from 
leƫ  ng and  subleƫ  ng and profi t from sale of assets. For all operaƟ ng leases , rental income is recognized 
as per the contract of lease.

Interest income is recognized on a Ɵ me proporƟ on basis taking into account the amount outstanding and 
the rate applicable.

15.  Dividends

Dividends and interim dividends payable to a Company’s shareholders are recognized as changes in eq-
uity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders’ meeƟ ng and the Board of Directors 
respecƟ vely.

Company has not declared or proposed any dividend payable to shareholders.

16.  Employee Benefi ts

a)   Short Term Employee Benefi ts-It includes benefi ts like salaries, non-vesƟ ng compensated absences 
and various incenƟ ves. These are recognized as an expense in the statement of profi t and loss of 
the year in which the related services are rendered.

    A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under performance related pay if the 
Company has a present legal or construcƟ ve obligaƟ on to pay this amount as a result of past ser-
vice provided by the employee and the obligaƟ on can be esƟ mated reliably.

b)   Long Term Benefi t Plans- These are in nature of defi ned benefi t obligaƟ ons, in respect of Gratuity 
Liability and Provident/Pension Fund.

    The cost of providing gratuity, a defi ned benefi t plan is determined using the projected unit meth-
od, on the basis of actuarial valuaƟ ons carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance sheet 
date. Actuarial gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial as-
sumpƟ ons are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the period in which they 
arise. Other costs are accounted for in the statement of profi t and loss.

The Company’s contribuƟ on to Provident Fund is charged to the statement of profi t and loss each 
year.

17.  Use of EsƟ mates and Management judgments

The preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements requires management to make judgments, esƟ mates and assump-
Ɵ ons that may impact the applicaƟ on of accounƟ ng policies and the reported value of assets, liabiliƟ es, 
income, expenses and related disclosures concerning the items involved as well as conƟ ngent assets and 
liabiliƟ es at the balance sheet date. The esƟ mates and management’s judgments are based on previous 
experience and other factors considered reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. 

Actual results may diff er from these esƟ mates. 

EsƟ mates and underlying assumpƟ ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounƟ ng esƟ -
mates are recognised in the period in which the esƟ mates are revised and in any future periods aff ected.

(a).  Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

The esƟ mated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of factors includ-
ing the eff ects of obsolescence, demand, compeƟ Ɵ on and other economic factors (such as the 
stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expen-
ditures required to obtain the expected future cash fl ows from the asset. Useful life of assets is 
determined in accordance with Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company reviews at 
the end of each reporƟ ng date the useful life of property, plant and equipment.

(b)  Useful life of intangible Assets

Useful life of intangible assets is generally determined in accordance with Schedule II to the com-
panies Act, 2013. In case of linking costs, life is esƟ mated to the best of judgments/esƟ mates by 
management.

Management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable. The company reviews at the end 
of each reporƟ ng date the useful life of Intangible Assets.
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(c)  Provisions and ConƟ ngencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and conƟ ngencies have been made in accor-
dance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es and ConƟ ngent Assets’. The evaluaƟ on of 
the likelihood of the conƟ ngent events has required best judgment by management regarding the 
probability of exposure to potenƟ al loss. If circumstances change following unforeseeable devel-
opments, then this likelihood could alter.

(d)  Income Taxes

Management judgment is required for the calculaƟ on of provision for income taxes and deferred 
tax assets and liabiliƟ es. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount 
of deferred tax assets/liabiliƟ es. The factors used in esƟ mates may diff er from actual outcome 
which could lead to signifi cant adjustment to the amounts reported in the standalone fi nancial 
statements.

(e)  Impairment of fi nancial assets

The impairment provisions for fi nancial assets are based on assumpƟ ons about risk of default and 
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumpƟ ons and selecƟ ng the 
inputs to the impairment calculaƟ on, based on Company’s past history, exisƟ ng market condiƟ ons 
as well as forward looking esƟ mates at the end of each reporƟ ng period.

(f)  Defi ned Benefi t Plan

The cost of defi ned benefi t plan and the present value of such obligaƟ on are determined using ac-
tuarial valuaƟ on. An actuarial valuaƟ on involves making various assumpƟ ons that may diff er from 
actual developments in the future. These include the determinaƟ on of the discount rate, future 
salary increases, mortality rates and aƩ riƟ on rate. Due to the complexiƟ es involved in the valua-
Ɵ on and its long-term nature, a defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on is highlysensiƟ ve to changes in these 
assumpƟ ons. All assumpƟ ons are reviewed at eachreporƟ ng date.
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RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED
(A wholly owned subsidiary of Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited)

Notes to Financial statements as at 31st, March, 2021
Note 2
Non Current Assets- Property, Plant & Equipment

 (Amount in lacs) 

ParƟ culars

 Gross Block DepreciaƟ on  Net Block 

 As at 
01.04.2020  AddiƟ ons 

DeducƟ on/ 
Adjustments 

As at
31.03.2021 

As at
01.04.2020

During 
the year

DeducƟ on/ 
Adjustments

As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

Building 321.14   -     321.14 21.52 5.38   26.90   294.25   299.62 

Air CondiƟ oner 5.08   5.08 2.85 0.59   3.44   1.65   2.23 

Furniture and Fixture 23.46   23.46 11.35 3.03   14.38   9.09   12.12 

Offi  ce Equipment 14.68   14.68 8.68 2.30   10.98   3.70   6.00 

Computer 21.48   21.48 15.78 2.74   18.52   2.96  5.70 

Vehicle 37.38   37.38 23.91 4.32   28.24   9.15 13.47 

Total   423.23   -     -     423.23   84.09   18.35   102.44   320.79 339.14

1.  Useful Lives as per Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 
 Building   60 Years  
 Air CondiƟ oner   5 Years  
 Furniture and Fixture 10 Years  
 Offi  ce Equipment  5 Years  
 Computer    3 Years  
 Vehicle    6 to 8 Years  

Note 3
Non Current assets - Intangible Assets

 (Amount in lacs) 

ParƟ culars

 Gross Block DepreciaƟ on  Net Block 

 As at 
01.04.2020  AddiƟ ons 

DeducƟ on/ 
Adjustments 

As at
31.03.2021 

As at
01.04.2020

During 
the year

DeducƟ on/ 
Adjustments

As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

Website development 
& SoŌ ware costs

81.66 -   -   81.66 35.03 10.18 -   45.20   36.46  46.64 

Total 81.66 - - 81.66 35.03 10.18 - 45.20 36.46 46.64

Gross Block includes Rs. 50.25 Lakh paid to IRCTC towards integraƟ on charges which is being amorƟ sed over a 
period of ten years considering the perpetual use of integraƟ on facility assuming renewel/extension of agreement 
for a longer period.

1.  Useful Lives as per Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 
 Computer SoŌ ware  3 to 10 Years

 (Amount in lacs) 

ParƟ culars

 Gross Block DepreciaƟ on  Net Block 

Recognised as At
01.04.2020  AddiƟ ons 

DeducƟ on/ 
Adjustments 

As at
31.03.2021 

As at
01.04.2020

During 
the year

DeducƟ on/ 
Adjustments

As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2021

As at
31.03.2020

RENTAL LEASE ASSETS   33.11   0.47   33.58 -   12.95   9.47   22.42 - -   20.16 
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RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED
(A wholly owned subsidiary of Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited)

Notes to fi nancial statements as at 31st March, 2021
 (Amount in lacs) 

ParƟ culars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Note 4

Non Current Financial Assets- Loans

Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposits 5.19 5.19
Total 5.19 5.19 

Note5

Non Current Financial Assets- Others

Other bank balances  - -   
Total - -   

Note 6

Other Non Current Assets

Deff ered Tax Assets  -   -   
MAT Credit EnƟ tlement 27.55 27.55

Total 27.55 27.55 

Note 7
Other Non Current Assets

Prepaid expenses 0.01 0.36

Capital Advances - -   

Total 0.01 0.36 
Note 8

Current Financial Assets

Trade Receivables

Unsecured, Considered good 800.52 1,078.09 
Unsecured which have signifi cant increase in credit risk   -   

Unsecured with Credit Impairment  -   

Less:- Provision for Impairment (104.12) (104.12)

Total 696.40 973.98 
Note 9

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with banks
  - In current accounts 10.92 86.35

  - In CC accounts-HDFC bank 0.02 0.77

BANK OF BARODA CC  -   -   

Cheques, draŌ s on hand 0.00 2.71
Cash on hand 0.71 3.22

Total 11.65 93.05 

Note 10

Bank Balances Other the cash and cash Equivalents
Balances with banks

Deposit with original maturity more then three month and maturing with in twelve months  ( 
including Interest Accrued) (Under lien for cash credit limit with BOB)

26.55 25.15

Total   26.55 25.15
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RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED
(A wholly owned subsidiary of Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited)

Notes to fi nancial statements as at 31st March 2021
(Amount in lacs) 

ParƟ culars As at  31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Note 11
Current Financial Assets -Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits ( Includes Rs. 32 lacs under Joint bank Guarantee 
agreement with TAFI) [See Note No. 30(9)]

33.63 103.62

 Loans and advances to related parƟ es /Others
Others:
Loans and advances to others
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received or 
pending adjustments 

305.72 372.21

Total   339.35 475.83 
Note 12
Current Tax Assets (Net
TDS Receivable 53.81 85.96
GST on  Advance 5.40  -   
Current Tax LiabiliƟ es (Net)  -  -   
Total 59.21 85.96 

Note13
Other Current Assets

Other Advances 32.46 36.65
Prepaid expenses 7.19 5.21
Total 39.65 41.86
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RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED
(A wholly owned subsidiary of Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited)

Notes to fi nancial statements as at 31st March, 2021

Note -14 Share capital
      (Amount in lacs) 

ParƟ culars As at 31st March,2021 As at 31st March, 2020 
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each   3,000,000   300.00   3,000,000   300.00 

  3,000,000   300.00   3,000,000   300.00 
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each   2,888,888   288.89   2,888,888   288.89 

  2,888,888   288.89   2,888,888   288.89 
(i) ReconciliaƟ on of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporƟ ng period:

ParƟ culars As at 31st March,2021 As at 31st March, 2020 
Number Amount Number Amount

Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year   2,888,888   288.89   2,000,000   200.00 
Add  : Issued during the year   -     -     888,888   88.89 
Shares outstanding at the end of the period   2,888,888   288.89   2,888,888   288.89 

(iii) Shares held by holding company
ParƟ culars As at 31st March,2021 As at 31st March, 2020 
Equity shares of Re. 10 each fully paid up held by
Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited , the holding company 
including its nominees

  2,888,888   288.89   2,888,888   288.89 

  2,888,888   288.89   2,888,888   288.89 
(iv) ParƟ culars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

in the Company
Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited, Holding Company   2,888,888 100%   2,888,888 100%

  2,888,888 100%   2,888,888 100%
(v) As per record of the company, including its register of shareholder/ members and other declaraƟ on received from 

shareholders regarding benefi cial interest, the above shareholding represent both legal and benefi cial ownership of 
shares.

RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED
(A wholly owned subsidiary of Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited)

Notes to fi nancial statements as at 31st March, 2021
     (Amount in lacs) 

ParƟ culars As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Note 15
Other Equity
SecuriƟ es Premium Account 310.11 310.11
Retained Earnings (253.40) (91.14)
Other Reserves- FVTOCI Reserve 6.80 (0.81)
Total 63.51 218.16
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RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED
(A wholly owned subsidiary of Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited)

     (Amount in lacs) 
ParƟ culars Non Current Current Non Current Current
Note 16
Non Current Financial LiabiliƟ es- Borrowings
Secured - Term Loans from banks
HDFC Bank Limited
Against  hypothecaƟ on of specifi c vehicle and  
repayable in 36 monthly instalments of  Rs.13800 
from  the date of loan inclusive of 
interest @ 10.76 % 

-   1.56 1.56 1.40

WORKING CAPITAL TERM LOAN 
FROM BANK OF BARODA
Secured by HypothecaƟ on of  all stocks, book 
debts and movable fi xed assets present and future 
of company , equitable mortgage of specifi c immovable property of 
company ,specifi c immovable property of holding company and Lien on 
Fixed Deposit and corporate guarantee of holding company.
Terms of Repayment: Repayable in 72 
instalments ranging from 

584.16 24.00 -   -   

Rs.6 lacs to Rs.11 lacs w.e.f.26.12.2021
INTEREST 8.10%
Total 584.16 25.56 1.56 1.40

 (Amount in lacs)
ParƟ cular As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Note 17
Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax liability 9.73 40.36 
Deferred tax liability/ (Assets on OCI) 2.67 (0.53)
Diff erence between accounƟ ng and tax   -   - 
 - DepreciaƟ on (0.02) 1.73 
 Deferred tax assets   -     - 
 Employee benefi ts (0.66) (1.48)
 Disallowances under SecƟ on 43B 0.69 (0.07)
Current Year Loss (56.76) (30.28)
Net Deferred Tax Liability (54.07) (30.62)
Total (44.33) 9.73 
Note 18
Other non-current liabiliƟ es 
Income received but not accrued -  -
Total - -
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Note 19
Current Financial LiabiliƟ es- Borrowings (Amount in lacs)
ParƟ cular As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Secured-
Bank of Baroda - -
Secured by HypothecaƟ on of  all stocks, book debts and movable fi xed assets 
present and future of company , equitable mortgage of  specifi c immovable 
property of company ,specifi c immovable property of holding company and 
Lien on Fixed Deposit and corporate guarantee of holding company. 

- -

Cash Credit Limit -   775.21
OverdraŌ 100.00
FITL -   

Unsecured 
From Related ParƟ es
Transcorp InternaƟ onal Ltd - Holding Company 95.38 254.06
 Ayan Fintrade Pvt. Ltd.   -   25.87
Bhabani Pigments Pvt. Ltd. 200.00 200.00
Interest accured but not Due- Bhabani Pigments Pvt Ltd. 4.11 3.79
Security Deposits
Deposits  from Holding Company 1.00 1.00
Deposits from others 4.05 4.05
Total 404.55 1,263.99 
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RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED
(A wholly owned subsidiary of Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited)

Notes to fi nancial statements as at 31st March, 2021   
Note 20 (Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars As at 31st March,2021 As at 31st March,2020

Trade Payables

 Trade Payables 

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises  -   -   

(b)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises & 
small enterprises. 

25.64 98.21

Total 25.64 98.21 

  The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Offi  ce Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 
which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should menƟ on in their correspondence with its cus-
tomers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated aŌ er fi ling of the Memorandum. No such infor-
maƟ on is available with the management and consequently , there are no overdues outstanding to micro and 
small enterprises as defi ned under Micro, Small and Medium enterprises Development Act, 2006. Further, the 
Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act..

Details of dues to MSME’s is as per informaƟ on available with the Company:   

a) . the principal amount and the interest due thereon ( to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any 
supplier at the end of each accounƟ ng year.;   

 Principal Amount  Nil
 Interest Due  Nil
b) . the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of secƟ on 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enter-

prises Development Act, 2006  ( 27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day during each accounƟ ng year.;

c).  the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment ( which has been paid 
but beyond the appointed day during the year) bit without adding the interest specifi ed under the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.:

d).  the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounƟ ng year; and

e)  the amount further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unƟ l such date 
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of 
a deducƟ ble expenditure under secƟ on 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006. 

Note 21 

Current LiabiliƟ es - Other Financial LiabliƟ es (Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars As at 31st March,2021 As at 31st March,2020

Current maturiƟ es of  Long term Borrowings 25.56 1.40

Expenses and other payables ( including  payable to holding co. 
Rs.1,251,621/- net of recovery for services rendered) 

32.30 37.30

Total 57.86 38.71 
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Note 22

Other Current LiabliƟ es (Amount in Lacs)

TDS /PF/ESI /Bonus and other statutory obligaƟ ons 10.62 31.41

Income received but not accrued  11.46 20.53

Advance from customers  160.45 140.21

Total 182.54 192.15 
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RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED 
ΈA WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF TRANSCORP INTERNATIONAL LIMITEDΉ

Statement of profi t and loss for year ended 31st, March, 2021
Note No.23
Revenue from operaƟ ons                                                                                                                                                      (Amount in lacs) 
ParƟ culars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
Sale of services   129.14   574.94 
Other OperaƟ ng Revenue   33.28   83.38 
Total   162.42   658.31 
Details of Services rendered
TickeƟ ng 78.67 416.48
Tours, Hotels & Allied AcƟ viƟ es 28.32 58.89
Vehicle Rentals 21.13 86.91
Others 1.02 12.67
Total 129.14 574.94 
Details Of Other OperaƟ ng Revenue
Unspent LiabiliƟ es WriƩ en Back/Claims (Net) 1.47 22.47
Foreign Exchange Revenue   -     -   
Others 31.81 60.91
Total  33.28   83.38 
Note no. 24
Other Income  (Amount in lacs)
ParƟ culars Year ended  31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
Interest income
Others Interest 8.31 6.05
Rent Income 4.20 6.00
Total 12.51 12.05 
Note No. 25
Employee benefi ts  (Amount in lacs)
ParƟ culars Year ended  31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
Salaries, bonus and other allowances 133.62 324.22
ContribuƟ on to provident and other funds Including Charges 6.84 20.66
Gratuity 2.92 5.69
Staff  Recruitment and training Expenses 0.00 2.44
Staff  welfare 0.21 4.09
Total 143.60 357.10 
Note no. 26
Finance cost  (Amount in lacs)
ParƟ culars Year ended  31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
Interest expense   111.07   134.23 
Other borrowing costs   -     3.26 
Total   111.07   137.49
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RITCO TRAVELS AND TOURS PRIVATE LIMITED
ΈA WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF TRANSCORP INTERNATIONAL LIMITEDΉ

Statement of profi t and loss for year ended 31st, March, 2021 
Note No. 27

DepreciaƟ on and amorƟ saƟ on  (Amount in lacs)

ParƟ culars Year ended  31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020

On Property, Plant & Equipment 18.35 18.55

On Intangible Assets 10.18 8.98

On Rental Lease Assets 9.47 15.98

Total 38.00 43.50 

Note no. 28

Vehicle OperaƟ ng Expenses

ParƟ culars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020

Vehicle Trip Expenses 10.57 55.50

Vehicle Taxes 0.10 0.05

Vehicle Insurance 1.11 1.15

Vehicle repairs and Maintenance 0.89 1.67

Input GST 1.08 2.03

Total 13.75 60.40 

Note No. 29

Other expenses  (Amount in lacs)

ParƟ culars Year ended  31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020

Rent Paid  -  2.48 

Repairs and Maintenance 14.55 37.65 

Insurance 2.82 0.77 

Rates & Taxes 0.14 2.72 

Electricity & Water 3.39 9.09 

PrinƟ ng & StaƟ onery 0.14 3.01 

Travelling and Conveyance 1.02 37.05 

CommunicaƟ on costs 3.29 12.19 

Legal and Professional Charges 11.28 28.46 

Directors Siƫ  ng Fees 0.83 0.40 

Payment To Auditors  -   -   

Audit Fees 1.60 3.60 

Tax Audit Fees 0.75 0.75 

Review Fees 0.47 0.47 

Bad & Doubƞ ul Debs /  w/off 21.52 2.39 

Bank Charges 1.02 1.95 

Miscellaneous Expenses 1.18 5.95 

Commission,brokerage ,Discounts & Write off s 15.85 28.07 

Membership and SubscripƟ ons 2.82 5.38 

AdverƟ sment & Publicity  -   0.76 

Total  82.66 183.13
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Note 30 :  Other Explanatory InformaƟ on 
1 Company is engaged in business in India only, which in the context of Ind AS 108 “OperaƟ ng Segments” is con-

sidered the only geographical segment. Company is engaged in the business of Travels, Tours and allied acƟ viƟ es, 
being the only segment. 

2 Legal and professional charges includes Rs.0.58 lakhs (Previous year- Rs. 0.70lakhs ) paid  to auditors for other 
services.

3 Trade payables, GST payable, trade receivables, and advances,  are subject to reconciliaƟ on/confi rmaƟ on. Branch 
and head offi  ce balances are at diff erent stages of reconciliaƟ on. Management expects no material impact of 
same on fi nancial statements.

4 Disclosure as per Ind AS 12: Income Taxes

(a)  Income Tax Expense
(i)  Income Tax recognised in the statement of profi t and loss 

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Current Tax expense

Current Year  0.00 

MAT credit carried forward 0.00 

Adjustment for earlier years  1.10  4.86 

Total current Tax Expense  1.10  4.86 

Deferred Tax Expense

and reversal of temporary diff erences 0.19  0.02 

Less: Deferred Tax asset for Deferred Tax Liability (30.28) (56.76)

Total Deferred Tax Expense (30.09) (56.74)

Total Income Tax Expense (28.99) (51.88)

(ii)  Income Tax recognised in other comprehensive income  

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Before tax Tax expense / 
(benefi t)

Net of Tax Before tax Tax expense /
(benefi t)

Net of Tax

Net actuarial gains/(losses) on 
defi ned benefi t plans

(3.76) (0.98) (2.78)  10.27  2.67  7.60 

Total (3.76) (0.98) (2.78)  10.27  2.67  7.60

(iii)  CalculaƟ on of Income Tax Expense  

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars As  at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2021

Profi t before tax (215.37) (214.14)

Tax using company’s domesƟ c tax rate 26 %(P.Y. 25.75%) (56.00) (55.68)

MAT credit adjustments   0.00 

Add: Earlier Year tax  1.10  4.86 

Add: Others- on expenses not allowed in Income Tax/
others

(30.09) (56.74)

Tax as per Statement of Profi t & Loss (28.99) (51.88)

Eff ecƟ ve Rate of Tax 13.46% 24.23%

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

249



5 Disclosure as per Ind AS 19 ‘ Employee Benefi t’
A)  Defi ned contribuƟ on plan
 During the year company has recongised the following amounts in the statement of    
 profi t and loss account.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 2019-20 2020-21

Benefi ts(Contributed to)

Provident & Pension fund  18.16  6.57 

Employee state insurance  1.20  0.27 

Total 19.36 6.84 

B)  Defi ned benefi ts plan
Gratuity
The company has a defi ned benefi t gratuity plan. Every employee who has rendered conƟ nuous service of 5 
years or more is enƟ tled to gratuity at 15 days salary (15/26 * last drawn basic salary) for each completed year 
of service subject to maximum of rupees 20 lakhs on superannuaƟ on, resignaƟ on ,terminaƟ on, disablement 
,or on death.  

Leave encashment
The company has a policy to pay leave encashment. Every employee is enƟ ltled to claim leave encashment 
aŌ er his/her reƟ rment/terminaƟ on which is calculated based upon no. of leves taken. The company pays 
leave encashment for a period not exceeding 90/120 days in year.

ReconcilaƟ on of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defi ned benefi t 
obligaƟ on : 

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Gratuity Gratuity

Present Value of obligaƟ on as at beginning of year 30.29 33.79 

Current service cost 6.20 2.35 

Interest cost 2.32 2.30 

Past Service Cost  0.00 0.00 

Actuarial (gain)/loss  3.63 (10.21)

Benefi t paid (8.65) (4.43)

Present value of obligaƟ on as at the end of year 33.79 23.80 

Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Gratuity Gratuity

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year 36.96  31.01 

Fund Opening Diff erence  0.00  0.00 

Return on plan assets, (excluding amount included in net 
Interest expense)

 2.70  2.17 

Fund Management Charges  0.00  0.00 

Interest income  0.00  0.00 
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Employer’s contribuƟ ons  0.00  0.00 

Benefi ts paid (8.65) (4.43)

Fair value of plan assets, end of the year  31.01  28.75 

Amount recognized in the balance sheet consists of: 

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Gratuity Gratuity

Present value of defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on 33.79  23.80 

Fair value of plan assets 31.01  28.75 

Net liability  2.78 (4.95)

Net Interest cost recognised   : 

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Gratuity Gratuity

Interest Expenses  2.31  2.29 

Interest Income 2.83  2.11 

Net Interest (0.52)  0.18 

Amount recognized in other comprehensive income consists of: 

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Gratuity Gratuity

Acturial Gain/(Loss) on ObligaƟ on (3.63) 10.21 

Acturial Gain/(Loss) on Asset (0.13) 0.06 

Total Acturial Gain/(Loss) recognised in (OCI) (3.76) 10.27 

BifurcaƟ on of Acturial (Gain)/Loss on obligaƟ on :

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Gratuity Gratuity

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic 
assumpƟ ons

 0.02  0.00 

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in fi nancial 
assumpƟ ons

 3.24  0.02 

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in experience 
adjustments on plan liabiliƟ es

 0.37 (10.23)

Total Acturial (Gain)/Loss  3.63 (10.21)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

251



BifurcaƟ on of Acturial (Gain)/Loss on Asset :

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Gratuity Gratuity

Expected Interest income 2.83  2.11 

Actual income on Plan asset  2.70  2.17 

Acturial gain/(Loss) for the year on Asset (0.13)  0.06 

InformaƟ on for funded plans with a defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on less than plan assets:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Gratuity Gratuity

Defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on  33.79  23.80 

Fair value of plan assets 31.01  28.75 

Net Asset/(liability) (2.78)  4.95 

ReconciliaƟ on of the present value of defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on and the fair value of the plan 
assets

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Gratuity Gratuity

Present value of obligaƟ on at the beginning 33.79  23.80 

Fair value of plan assets at period end 31.01  28.75 

Funded status excess of Actual over esƟ mated. (2.78)  4.95 

Assets/(LiabiliƟ es) recognized in the Balance Sheet (2.78)  4.95 

Cost recognized for the period (included under Salaries, Wages, Allowances, Bonus and Gratuity)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2021

Gratuity Gratuity

Cost Recognized in Statement of Profi t & Loss

Current Service Cost 6.20  2.35 

Interest cost (Net)  2.32  2.29 

Expected return on plan assets (2.83) (2.11)

Diff erence in Opening Liability  0.00  0.00 

Other Cost (being LIC expenses & GST )  0.00  0.39 

Past Service Cost  0.00  0.00 

Total  5.69  2.92 

Cost Recognized in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gain)/loss  3.76 (10.27)

Net cost recognised for the period  9.45 (7.35)
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C)  Defi ned benfi t obligaƟ on
I)   Actuarial assumpƟ on 

    The folllowing were the principal actuarial assumpƟ on at the reporƟ ng date.

Economoc AssumpƟ ons

ParƟ culars 31.03.2020 31.03.2021

Discount rate* 6.80% 6.79%

Salary escalaƟ on rate*** 7.00% 7.00%

ValuaƟ on Methodology Projected Unit Credit Method Projected Unit Credit Method

   * The discount rate assumed is determined by reference to market yield available on government bonds, 
at the accounƟ ng date.

 ** The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering several appliacble factor mainly 
the composiƟ on of plan assets held, assessed risk of assets management and historical return from 
plan assets.

*** The esƟ mates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuaƟ on, taking account of infl aƟ on, 
seniority, promoƟ on, business plan, HR policy and other relevent factors on long term basis.

 Demographic AssumpƟ ons
AƩ riƟ on rates are the company’s best esƟ mate of employee turnover in future determined considering 
factors such as nature of business & industry, retenƟ on policy, demand & supply in employment market, 
standing of the company , business plan, HR Policy etc as provided in the  relevant accounƟ ng standard. 
AƩ riƟ on rates as given below have been received as input from the company. 

31.3.2020 31.3.2021

i)    ReƟ rement Age Years) 58 58

ii)   Mortality rate  inclusive of provision for diability** 100%of IALM(2012-14) 100%of IALM(2012-14)

iii) AƩ riƟ on at ages Withdrawal rate % Withdrawal rate %

      Upto 30 YEARs 3 3

      From 31 to 44 years 2 2

      Above 44 years 1 1

It should be noted that in case of employees above reƟ rement age, for the purpose of valua-
Ɵ on it is assumed they will reƟ re immediately & benefi t is considered up to actual reƟ rement age. 
Mortality & Morbidity rates - 100% of IALM (2012-14) rates have been assumed which also includes the al-
lowance for disability benefi ts. 

Mortality Rates for specimen ages

Age Rate Age Rate Age Rate

15  0.000698 45 0.002579 75 0.038221

20 0.000924 50 0.004436 80 0.061985

25 0.000931 55 0.007513 85 0.100979

30 0.000977 60 0.011162 90 0.163507

35 0.001202 65 0.015932 95 0.259706

40 0.00168 70 0.024058 100 0.397733
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II) SensiƟ vity analysis 
Reasonable possible change at the reporƟ ng date to one of the relevant actuarial assumpƟ on, holding other 
assumpƟ on constant, would have eff ected the defi ned benefi t obligaƟ on by the amount shown below.

Present value obligaƟ on at the end of year   = Rs. 23.80DW

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ParƟ culars 31.03.2021

Increase Decrease

Discount rate (0.50% movement) (1.14)  1.25 

Salary escalaƟ on rate (0.50% movement)  1.25 (1.14)

III) Expected Maturity analysis of the defi ned benefi ts plan in future years  

(Rs. In Lakhs)

31-Mar-20 First Year “Second year” “Third to FiŌ h year” “More than 5 Years”

Gratuity  0.52  7.15  3.00  23.11 

Total 0.52  7.15  3.00  23.11 
 

(Rs. In Lakhs)

31-Mar-21 First Year “Second year” “Third to FiŌ h year” “More than 5 Years”

Gratuity  0.37  5.04  2.11  16.28 

Total  0.37  5.04  2.11  16.28 

IV)  Risk exposure
ValuaƟ ons are based on certain assumpƟ ons, which are dynamic in nature and vary over Ɵ me. As such 
company is exposed to various risks as follows-
A) Salary Increases: Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate as-

sumpƟ on in future valuaƟ ons will also increase the liability. 
B) Investment Risk : If Plan is funded then assets liabiliƟ es mismatch & actual investment return on assets 

lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuaƟ on date can impact the liability.
C) Discount Rate : ReducƟ on in discount rate in subsequent valuaƟ ons can increase the plan’s liability.
D) Mortality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuaƟ on 

can impact the liabiliƟ es.
E) Withdrawals:  Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of with-

drawal rates at subsequent valuaƟ ons can impact Plan’s liability.

7  Disclosure as per Ind AS 24: Related ParƟ es  

Related Party disclosures

(i)  Holding Companies
  Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited

(ii) Fallow Subsidiary of Holding Companies

  Transcorp Estates Private Limited 

(iii)  Associates/InvesƟ ng Party of Holding Company
  Transcorp Enterprises Limited
  TCI Bhoruka Projects Ltd.
  Bhoruka Investment Ltd.       
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(iv) Enterprise over which KMP or relaƟ ves of KMP have control/signifi cant infl uence with whom there 
were transacƟ ons during the year:    

  TCI Express 
  Ayan Fintrade Pvt. Ltd.
  TCI Infrastructure Finance Limited
  M/s Ashok Kumar Ayan Kumar 

  M/s Ashok Kumar & Sons HUF

(v)  Key Management Personnel and person having signifi cant infl uence
  Mrs. Manisha Agarwal 
   Mr. PurushoƩ am Agarwal   
   Mr. Rajneesh Singhvi 
   Mr. Hem Kumar Bhargav
   Mr. Praveen Ghandhi (AddiƟ onal Director) 
   Mrs. Yashaswini Pandey 
   Mrs. Sangeeta Bahl 
 Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma ( KMP of holding Company)

(vi) RelaƟ ves of Key management personnel and person having signifi cant infl uence: 
   Mrs. Avani Kanoi 
   Ms. Ayan Agarwal  

A)  Related parƟ es where control exist:

Transcorp InternaƟ onal Limited-Holding Company (Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars  31.3.2020 31.3.2021 

I. Sale/purchase of services:

Services rendered(Net) 42.69 13.69 

Services taken (net) 19.32 0.03 

II. Loans and advances in nature of loans taken (Repayable on demand)

Balance at the beginning of accounƟ ng year 470.64 254.06 

Balance at the end of accounƟ ng year 254.06 95.38 

Loan taken during the year 2,304.50 281.00 

Maximum amount outstanding 531.09 254.06 

Loans repaid 2,345.73 445.50 

Share alloƩ ed by conversion of loan into capital 200.00 -   

Interest paid (Gross) 27.39 15.56 

TDS 2.74 1.17 

IV. Other transacƟ ons:

*Guarantees Received for credit faciliƟ es from bank 775.00 -   

Guarantee in favor of TAFI 1,000.00 -   

Rent received 6.00 4.20 

Rent paid 1.80 -   

Sharing of expenses (Net) (Dr.) 3.89 16.99 

Outstanding:

*Guarantees Received for credit faciliƟ es from bank 775.00 708.08 

  Guarantee in favor of TAFI 1,000.00 400.00 

Security Deposit Received - Balance outstanding 1.00 1.00 

*Upto the amount uƟ lised/outstanding

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

255



B)    Associates/InvesƟ ng party of Holding Co. 
(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars  31.3.2020 31.3.2021 

1. Bhoruka Investment Limited

Related party transacƟ ons:

Sale/purchase of services 

Services rendered 0.06  -   

2. TCI Bhoruka Projects Ltd

II. Sale or purchase of services

    Services rendered -  0.09 

    Closing balance of services rendered (Dr.) -  -   

    Sharing of Services -   -

3. Transcorp Enterprises Limited

Related party transacƟ ons:

Sharing of expenses(net) 0.71 -   

Services Taken -  -   

Services rendered 0.08 0.03 

Closing amount (Cr.) 1.09 1.00 

4. Ayan Fintrade Private Limited

Related party transacƟ ons:

I. Loans and advances in nature of loans taken:

   Balance at the beginning of accounƟ ng year 51.34   25.87 

   Balance at the end of accounƟ ng year 25.87   -   

   Loan taken during the year 20.00   -   

   Maximum amount outstanding 51.34   25.87 

   Repaid during the year 51.34   25.87 

   Interest (Gross) 6.52   -   

   ITDS 0.65   -   

5. TCI Express

Related party transacƟ ons:

Services rendered 6.99   -   

Closing Balance Receivable of Service Rendered 1.32   1.32 

6. TCIFL

Related party transacƟ ons:

 Other income -   -   

Closing Balance Receivable of Service Rendered 0.02 0.02 
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C)  Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company
  Transcorp Estates Private Limited 

(Amount in Lacs)

Related party transacƟ ons:

Services rendered - 0.73 

Rent paid 1.98 -

closing balance payable 0.18 -

D)   Persons or RelaƟ ves of persons having signifi cant infl uence in Holding Company
(Amount in Lacs)

Related Party TransacƟ on

Mrs. Avani Kanoi

Salary Paid 11.28   8.36 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sharma

Services rendered 4.55 0.13 

E)   Key management personnel
(Amount in Lacs)

Ms. Sangeeta Bahl

Salary Paid 37.98 13.30 

F)   Directors
(Amount in Lacs)

Mrs. Manisha Agarwal (DIN: 00453917)

Services rendered -   0.04 

Siƫ  ng fees paid 0.10 0.30 

Mr. Praveen Gandhi

Services Taken 8.25   -   

Siƫ  ng fees paid 0.10 -   

Dr. PurushoƩ am Agarwal 0.10 -   

Siƫ  ng fees paid 0.10 0.23

Mr. Hem Bhargawa

Siƫ  ng fees paid 0.10   0.30 

G.   Firm/body corporate where relaƟ ves of persons having signifi cant infl uence in   
 Holding company are partners or are having signifi cant infl uence

(Amount in Lacs)

M/s Ashok Kumar Ayan Kumar

Commission earned on Insurance 0.97 -   

Commission Paid on Segments 5.52 -   
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8  Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 : 
  Earnings per Share Basic and diluted earnings per share 

(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars 31 March 2020 31 March 2021

Profi t   aƩ ributable   to   equity shareholders 
(used as numerator) (Rs.)

-186.38 -162.26 

Weighted average number of equity  shares  for  Basic  and Diluted 
EPS  (used as denominator) (Nos.)

2,616,879   2,888,888 

Earnings per share -7.12 -5.62

9  Disclosure as per Ind AS 37: Provisions, ConƟ ngent LiabiliƟ es ConƟ ngent Liability 
  ConƟ ngent Liability 

(a)  Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 

i)    Amount disputed Rs. 2.87 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 2.87 Lakhs), out of this deposited with court 
Rs. 0.33 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 0.33 Lakhs) in respect of claims made by Customer and oth-
ers. 

ii)   TDS default up to FY 2020-21 is Rs.1.81 Lakhs (Up to FY 2019-20 Rs. 1.80 Lakhs)
iii)   Claim by Akbar Travel of India Pvt Limited ( as per the peƟ Ɵ on fi led by it against the company 

before NaƟ onal Company Law Tribunal, Jaipur under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016) for Rs. 
121.52 Lac related to Air Ɵ ckets made by it for its clients.

(b)  Liability under joint bank guarantee agreement entered with TAFI for covering credit limit from IATA for 
Rs. 400  lakhs (PY 1000 lakhs) 

 Company has executed “Joint Bank Guarantee” agreement with TAFI and furnished a sum of Rs. 32 Lakh 
(PY 100 Lakhs) as deposit with them for making good the default by Company or other parƟ cipaƟ ng mem-
bers in payment obligaƟ on to IATA. Amount of liability under the agreement,if any, is unascertainable at 
present. Holding company and one of the director are guarantor to this agreement .

(c)  Liability in respect of call back of segment incenƟ ves due to non achievement/ fulfi lment of agreed 
targets Rs.28.76 lacs and liquidated damages Rs.NIL  ( Previous year 59.18 lacs)

10. Disclosure as per Ind AS 108: OperaƟ ng Segments is given in consolidated fi nancial 
 state ments

11. Financial Risk Management 
The Company’s principal fi nancial liabiliƟ es,  comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main 
purpose of these fi nancial liabiliƟ es is to manage fi nances for the Company’s operaƟ ons. The Company 
has loan and other receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arise 
directly from its operaƟ ons. The most signifi cant fi nancial risks to which the Company is exposed to are 
described as follows:- 

i.  Market risk 

  Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate be-
cause of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest 
rate risk and other price risks, such as investment price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments 
aff ected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits,investments, and other fi nancial instru-
ments. This is based on the fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabiliƟ es held as at March 31, 2010 and March 
31, 2020. Company do not have investments.

ii.  Credit risk
 Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligaƟ ons under a fi nancial instrument or cus-

tomer contract, leading to a fi nancial loss. 
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iii. Liquidity risk.          

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collat-
eral obligaƟ ons without incurring unacceptable losses.   

iv.  Physical risk
 It is the risk of theŌ , robbery or fakeness of cash and cash equivalents.
 Risk Management framework
 The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of fi nancial markets 

and seeks to minimize potenƟ al adverse eff ects on the Company’s fi nancial performance. Risk manage-
ment is carried out by the Board of Directors under policies approved by idenƟ fying, evaluaƟ ng and hedg-
ing fi nancial risks. The board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering 
specifi c areas, such as  interest rate risk, and credit risk, investment of excess liquidity, adequate and 
proper insurance covers and proper and adequate training of personnels. 

 Financial Risk Management
i.  Market risk 
 Interest Rate Risk
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash fl ows of the fi nancial instrument will 

fl uctuate because of changes in market interest rates. In order to manage the interest rate risk, Board of 
Directors performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proporƟ on 
of fi xed interest rate and fl oaƟ ng rate fi nancial instruments in its total porƞ olio.

 Since the company only has nil/fi xed interest rate instruments, it is not exposed to signifi cant interest rate 
risk as at the respecƟ ve reporƟ ng periods. 

(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21

Financial Assets

Security Deposits 108.81 33.63

Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value 
to be received or pending adjustments

372.21 305.72

Loans to Employees 0.00 0.00

Other Bank Balances 25.15 26.55

Total 506.17 365.90

Financial LiabiliƟ es

Term Loans 2.97 609.73

Cash Credit/ OverdraŌ 775.21 100.00

Loans repayable on demand 483.73 299.49

Security Deposits 5.05 5.05

Total 1266.96 1014.27

ii. Credit risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operaƟ ng acƟ viƟ es (primarily trade receivables) and other 
fi nancial instruments.

Financial assets are wriƩ en off  when there is no reasonable expectaƟ on of recovery, such as a debtor 
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. The Company categorizes a loan or receivable 
for write off  when management is of the opinion that all the possible eff orts have been undertaken for 
recovery but the recovery is not possible. Where loans or receivables have been wriƩ en off , the Company 
conƟ nues to engage in enforcement acƟ vity to aƩ empt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries 

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

259



are made, these are to be recognized in profi t and loss. ConƟ nuous eff orts are made to ensure Ɵ mely 
payment from the customers. The carrying amount of fi nancial assets as appearing in Balance Sheet rep-
resents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade Receivables 
The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of business. The Company considers factors 
such as credit track record in the market and past dealings for extension of credit to customers. The 
Company monitors the payment track record of the customers. Outstanding customer receivables are 
regularly monitored. 
The Company has also taken advances and security deposits from its customers, which miƟ gate the credit 
risk to an extent.

Exposure to credit risk is to be shown in case where ECL or lifeƟ me ECL is recognized.

Provison for expected credit losses
company is not separately tracking changes in credit risk  of individual trade receivables and contract as-
sets for the purpose of ECL  as  these do not contain signifi cant fi nancing component . Therefore company 
has choosen  to calculate impairment under the simplifi ed approach on trade receivables and contract 
assets   as the impairment amount represents “lifeƟ me” expected credit loss. Accordingly, expected credit 
loss is recognised on total receivables.

The ageing of trade receivable is as below: 
(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars
Neither due 
nor impaired

Past Due
TotalWithin 6 months 6 Month to 

12 Months
Above 12 
months

Trade Receivables

As at March 1, 2021 80.89 2.72 716.91 800.52

Unsecured

As at March 31, 2020

Unsecured 387.87 60.82 629.40 1078.09

Actual credit loss during the period assesed by management Rs.21.52 lakhs (Previous Year - Rs.2.39 lakhs 
) is recognised in statement of Profi t and loss as bad debts, apart from the provision for  impairment in trade 
receivables for RS.104.12  lacs. recognised  in previous year.

ReconciliaƟ on of impairment loss provision: 
(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars Trade Receivables Other Balances

Balance As at March 31, 2020 104.12   -   

Impairment loss recognised 21.52 

amounts wriƩ en off  as bad debts 21.52 

Provision made   -   -   

Balance As at March 31, 2021 104.12   -  
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Financial instruments and cash deposits
The cash and cash equivalents as well as deposits in current accounts with bank are held with banks of high 
raƟ ng. The banks are also choosen as per the geographical and other business convenience and needs.
The company maintains signifi cant cash and deposit balances. 

iii.  Liquidity Risk 
The Company’s objecƟ ve is to maintain opƟ mum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral require-
ments.
The company does not anƟ cipate any problem in obtaining external funding in the foreseeable future 
when the need arises. 

Financing Arrangements
The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing faciliƟ es at the end of the reporƟ ng period:

(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars 31.3.2020 31.3.2021

Fixed-rate borrowings

Bank overdraŌ  (cash credit) 0 0

Total 0 0

The table below provides undiscounted cash fl ows towards non-derivaƟ ve fi nancial liabiliƟ es into relevant 
maturity based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date

(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars As at 31-3-2020 Total/ Carrying 
AmountOn demand <6 months 6-12 months >1 year 

Interest bearing borrowings 
(including current maturiƟ es) and 
security deposits

1,263.98  0.68  0.72  1.56  1,266.94 

Other liabiliƟ es 140.22   42.79   -     9.11  192.12 

Trade and other payables 135.51   -     -     -    135.51 

Total 1,539.71  43.47  0.72  10.67  1,594.57 

(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars As at 31-3-2021 Total/ Carrying 
AmountOn demand <6 months 6-12 months >1 year 

Interest bearing borrowings (in-
cluding 
current maturiƟ es) and security 
deposits

404.55  0.84  24.80  584.08  1,014.27 

Other liabiliƟ es 171.91   8.63   1.99   -    182.53 

Trade and other payables 57.94   -     -     -    57.94 

Total  634.40  9.47  26.79  584.08  1,254.74 

iv.  Physical Risk 
The company has taken adequate money insurance policy for covering loss which may be incurred due to 
risk of theŌ , robbery etc . The company provides  training to staff s for recognising the valid currency note 
for covering loss which may be incurred due to fake currency.
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12.  Fair Value Measurements
(a)  Financial Instruments by category 

(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars
31 March 2020

FVTPL FVTOCI AmorƟ sed Cost

Financial Assets   -   -   

Trade Receivables( net of impairment)   -   -   973.97 

Loans and security deposits   -   -   481.02 

Cash and cash equivalents   -   -   93.05 

Other Financial Assets(FDR with Bank)   -   -   25.15 

  -   -    1,573.19 

Financial LiabiliƟ es

Borrowings   - - 1,290.41 

Trade paybles   - -  98.21 

Other Financial LiabiliƟ es   - - 37.30 

  - - 1,425.92 

(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars
31 March 2020

FVTPL FVTOCI AmorƟ sed Cost

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables( net of impairment)   -   -   696.40 

Loans and security deposits   -   -   344.54 

Cash and cash equivalents   -   -   11.65 

Other Financial Assets(FDR with Bank)   -   -   26.55 

Total   -   -     1,079.14 

Financial LiabiliƟ es

Borrowings   -   -   1,014.27 

Trade paybles   -   -    25.64 

Other Financial LiabiliƟ es   -   -   32.30 

Total   -     -   1,072.21 

b)  Fair Value hierarchy
(Amount in Lacs)

Financial assets and liabiliƟ es 
measured at Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31 March 2020 There are no such instruments

Financial Assets

Financial LiabiliƟ es   -   

As at 31 March 2021 There are no such instruments

Financial Assets

Financial LiabiliƟ es   -   
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All  assets  and  liabiliƟ es  for  which  fair  value  is  measured  or  disclosed  in  the  fi nancial statements are catego-
rized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is signifi cant to the 
fair value Measurement as a whole: 
Level 1:   Level 1 hierarchy includes fi nancial instruments measured using quoted prices. This Includes  list-

ed  equity  instruments  that  have  quoted  price.  Listed  and  acƟ vely  traded  equity instru-
ments are stated at the last quoted closing price on the NaƟ onal Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(NSE). 

Level  2:  The  fair  value  of  fi nancial  instruments  that  are  not  traded  in  acƟ ve  market  is determined 
using valuaƟ on techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely  as  liƩ le  
as  possible  on  enƟ ty  specifi c  esƟ mates.  If  all  signifi cant  inputs  required  to  fair value an 
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3:  If one or more of the signifi cant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument 
is included in level 3. The fair value of the fi nancial assets and liabiliƟ es included in Level  3  is  
determined  in  accordance  with  generally  accepted  pricing  models  based  on discounted cash 
fl ow analysis using prices from observable current market transacƟ ons and dealer  quotes of  
similar instruments.

 There has been no transfer in either direcƟ on in this year or the previous year. 
c)  ValuaƟ on technique used to determine fair value: 

Specifi c ValuaƟ on techniques used to fair value the fi nancial instruments include: 

(i)  For Financial instruments other than at (ii) and (iii) - the use of quoted market prices.
(ii)  For  Financial  liabiliƟ es  (public  deposits,  long  term  borrowings)  Discounted  Cash Flow; ap-

propriate market borrowing rate of enƟ ty as on each balance sheet date used for discounƟ ng. 
(iii) For fi nancial assets (loans) discounted cash fl ow; appropriate market brrowing rate of the enƟ ty 

a son each balance sheet date is used for discounƟ ng.

d)  Fair value of fi nancial assets and liabiliƟ es measured at amorƟ zed cost 

(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars Level 31 March 2020 31 March 2021

Carrying 
amount

Fair value Carrying 
amount

Fair value

Financial Assets

Loans 3   481.02   481.02   344.54   344.54 

Trade Receivables( net of impairment) 3   973.97   973.97   696.40   696.40 

Financial LiabiliƟ es

Loans- Borrowing from banks 3   778.18   778.18   709.72 

Other Borrowings including lease pay-
ables

3   512.24   512.24   304.55 

Trade Payables 3   98.21   98.21   25.64 

Expenses and other payables 3   37.30   37.30   32.30 
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13   Capital Risk Management 
For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all 
other equity reserves. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and short term deposits. 
The primary objecƟ ve of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximize shareholder value. 

(Amount in Lacs)

ParƟ culars As at 31-3-20 As at 31-3-21

Total debt (other than security deposit) 1,285.36   1,009.22 

Less: cash and cash equivalents 93.05   11.65 

Net Debt 1,192.31   997.57 

Equity 507.05   352.40 

Net debt to equity raƟ o  2.35   2.83

14   IND AS 115
Revenue is recongnised upon transfer of control of services to customers in an amount that refl ects the consid-
eraƟ on, company expect to receive in exchange for those services. The compnay account for volume and other 
discounts as well as pricing incenƟ ves to customers as a reducƟ on of revenue. The company presents revenue net 
of indirect taxes in statement of Profi t & Loss. The Company’s segment revenue is recognised rateably over the 
term of the underlying segment agreement based on the performance obligaƟ on completed as per agreement. 
Amounts relaƟ ng to pending performance obligaƟ on and period is treated as unearned revenue and is shown as 
Current/Non Current Liability according to the period of the agreement. Similarly producƟ vity linked bonus (PLB) 
receivable under the agreements are recognised based on the performance achieved Ɵ ll the end of the accounƟ ng 
period as per the terms of the agreements.  

(Amount in Lacs)

Dis- agrregaƟ on of Revenue           31.3.2020 31.3.2021

a) Revenue from Ɵ ckeƟ ng tours, vehicle rentals, hotels and other ser-
vices 

Rs.  449.13 117.64

b) Revenue from Segment achievement     Rs. 16.43     0

c) Revenue relaƟ ng to ProducƟ vity Linked Bonus in the area of the 
Ɵ ckeƟ ng                              

Rs.   109.38  11.50   

Contract Balances

Unearned Revenue shown as current or non current liability -         Rs.   20.53 11.46

Receivables (ProducƟ vity Linked Bonus ) -           

                             Opening Balance   Rs.   382.67                   378.83

                              Revenue Recognised (Net) Rs.   109.38 11.50

                               Closing Balance (Net of Payment Received)                  Rs.   378.83 284.86

As regards above receivables, management has reviewed about impairment and has recognised impairment 
along with other trade receivables.

15. IND AS 116
Company had adopted “Ind AS 116- Lease” with eff ect from 1.4.2019 by applying the same to all lease contracts 
exisƟ ng on 1st April, 2019 using the modifi ed retrospecƟ ve method of transiƟ on where at the iniƟ al applicaƟ on 
the lease liability was measured at the present value of remaining lease payments and right to use asset was rec-
ognised at an amount equal to lease liability net of  cumulaƟ ve adjustments to retained earnings on the date of 
iniƟ al applicaƟ on. On transiƟ on the adopƟ on of new standard had resulted into recogniƟ on of rght to use assests 
of Rs.39.04lacs (net of cumulaƟ ve adjustments to retained earnings for Rs. 3.64 lacs ) and lease liability of RS. 
42.68lacs  Amount of impact of adopƟ on of this new standard on profi t/loss for the year was immaterial .   All the 
lease agreement matured or prematured during the year and accordingly at year end there was no right to use 
asset as well as lease liability.
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16   IMPACT  OF  GLOBAL  PANDEMIC  KNOWN  AS  COVID-19 
Global health  pandemic  covid19 coupled with its new variants has contributed to a signifi cant decline in global 
and local economic acƟ viƟ es. Company’s business is also severely impacted. Measures taken to contain the spread 
of virus including travel bans, quaranƟ nes and social/physical distancing worldwide have triggered signifi cant dis-
rupƟ ons to company’s  business leading to operaƟ ng loss and negaƟ ve cash fl ows impacƟ ng its going concern 
assumpƟ on. However the travel and hospitality industry has weathered many catastrophic events such as 9/11 and 
the great recession in the year 2008 and in every circumstance , it has climbed back and fl ourished. Company has 
taken various measures including reducƟ on in all costs whether operaƟ ng or fi xed and  revisiƟ ng its sales strategies 
with reduced credit periods. To fund the liquidity shorƞ all for the Ɵ me being, various opƟ ons are being considered 
including the availment of moratorium period for payment of interest  from bankers  as well as fresh low cost bor-
rowings . Company has assessed the recoverability of receivables and intangible assets by considering internal and 
external sources of informaƟ on including credit reports, economic forecasts and industry reports upto the date of 
approval of these fi nancial results.Looking to above facts and esƟ mates the company expects to recover the car-
rying amount of these asssets and do not see any impact on going concern assumpƟ on or status of the company.
The business of the company as well as its eff orts to bring the business to the normalcy will depend on future 
developments which are uncertain. The eventual  outcome of the global health pandemic may be diff erent from 
those esƟ mated as on the date of approval of these fi nancial results and the company will conƟ nue to monitor all 
material uncertainƟ es and to the changes to the future economic condiƟ ons

17   Previous Year’s fi gures have been regrouped, rearranged or recasted wherever considered necessary. 
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